
 

Chatham County Planning Board Minutes  

July 16, 2024  Page | 1 

 

 

 

 

Chatham County Planning Board Minutes  

July 16, 2024 
 

 

 
The Chatham County Planning Board met in regular session on the above date and the meeting were as follows: 
 
 
 
 

Present   Absent 

Jon Spoon, Chair 
Tony Mayer 
Amanda Roberson 
Nelson Smith 
Shelley Colbert 

Mary Roodkowsky, Vice-Chair 
Eric Andrews 
Clyde Frazier  
Elizabeth Haddix 

  

 
 
 
 
 
Planning Department 
Kimberly Tyson, Subdivision Administrator, Angela Plummer, Zoning Administrator, Hunter Glenn, Planner II, and Daniel 
Garrett, Clerk to the Planning Board.  
 
UDO Consultant: Kelly Cousino with White & Smith.  
 

I. CALL TO ORDER: 

Chair Spoon called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  

II. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: 

Chair Spoon stated there was a quorum, all 9 members were present.      

III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

Approval of the Agenda – Motion made by Ms. Robertson to approve the agenda, seconded by Vice-Chair 

Roodkowsky. The agenda was approved, 9-0, unanimously.  

IV. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: 

Consideration of the July 2, 2024 meeting minutes. Motion by Ms. Haddix to approve the July 2nd minutes and 

seconded by Ms. Robertson, the minutes were approved 8-0-1, Ms. Colbert abstained because she was absent for 

the July 2nd meeting.     

V. PUBLIC INPUT SESSION: 

There was not anyone who signed up to speak.  

 



 

Chatham County Planning Board Minutes  

July 16, 2024  Page | 2 

 

 

VI. UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE: 

 

1. UDO Module 3: Administration & Procedures Public Review Draft Presentation. 

 

• Ms. Kelly Cousino a UDO consultant with White & Smith gave a presentation and answered questions from 

the Planning Board members. The presentation and comments are below.  

 

        

 

        

 

        

 

 

                  
                                                

                                                               

      
               
        

                    
                    

                         
                   

           

 

 

                 

                            

                                              

                   
                                                

                     
                                                                              

                 
                                                                              

 

                    

 

                
                       

                           

                          

                               
         

                              
         

                              
     

                                  
            

                               

                                

                          
                     

                                   

                      

                                 
             

                           

                       

                                     
           

                                 

                                  

 



 

Chatham County Planning Board Minutes  

July 16, 2024  Page | 3 

 

 

 

 

           

 

          

 

        

 

 

         
       

                     

                         
                        
     

                           
                             
                             

 
                       

 
                       

               
                   

                            

                                
                                   
                                  
                        

                                 

                                   
                               

                                                              

                           
             

                     

                                             

                          

                      

                                                

                                

                                 

  

           
          
                   

                     
                   
                       
                         

                           
                

                           
                            
                       



 

Chatham County Planning Board Minutes  

July 16, 2024  Page | 4 

 

        

 

 

 

       

 

       

 

  

                      

  

                      

                        

                            

                              

                              

                    

                                  

                              

  

                      

                                                            

              

                                                          
                                                           
               

                                                               
           

                                                                
                                                          
               

                                                                 
                                                                 
                                 

  

                      

              

                                  
                                  

                                

                                     
                                     
                           
                                 
                                  
      

  

                      

                   

                                        
                                        
                                         
                          

                                        
                              
              

                                      
                          

  

                      



 

Chatham County Planning Board Minutes  

July 16, 2024  Page | 5 

 

 

 

• Mr. Frazier said he had spent a lot of time reviewing this procedure and cannot tell what is going to be 

included in the sketch plan. Ms. Cousino said we are still proposing application checklists for what is 

required to be on the sketch plan. Mr. Frazier asked if the checklist is available now to review. Ms. Cousino 

said it is not available at this time. Mr. Frazier said he was concerned that the suitable soils information 

would not be located on the sketch plan like it is currently on the First Plat, that is really important 

information because that is what really drives the design of the subdivision project and would hope the 

Planning Board would have that information when reviewing subdivisions. Ms. Cousino said the 

Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) does require a reasonable amount of information about the soil. In 

the subdivision process, that is required when the subdivision will have 10 or more contiguous acres and 

disturbers 10 or more acres, so that should capture most of the major subdivisions.   

• Mr. Frazier said we as a board rarely see subdivisions that do not meet the legal requirements, but what 

we can do is make suggestions to make them a little better with the agreement from the developer and that 

depends importantly on having the soils information and to where the lot lines will be located due to the 

septic soils. Mr. Frazier said he feels very strongly that the board needs that information. Ms. Cousino said 

we can include that with the checklist of required materials.   

• Mr. Andrews said that jurisdiction might be outside of Environmental Health now with the new ruling for soil 

scientists. It does not have to be approved by Environmental Health like it once was, it can be approved 

directly by a soil scientist now. Ms. Cousino said that is correct, that is an option.  

• Mr. Mayer said he agrees with Mr. Frazier and is also concerned the board will not have all of the 

information to make accurate decisions. Ms. Cousino said part of the intent was to limit the amount of 

information the developer needs to provide that early in the process, but if it is that critical information for 

your review then we can add that to the required list of materials. Chair Spoon said the parcels that do not 

have access to sewer a preliminary septic plan is something that we as a board are used to reviewing and 

would like to continue to do so. Ms. Cousino said that is okay.   

• Mr. Andrews said it is his understanding that septic approval and what qualifies for septic is outside of our 

jurisdiction. We are allowed to approve the lot lines that might be based on septic and agrees with Mr. 

Frazier about the subdivision design and how important that is in our review. Chair Spoon said we did get 

close to passing a rule where we would not allow off-site septic which was within our purview, but we 

stated looking at scenarios were the alternative might be worse than off-site septic. Chair Spoon said it is 

important for the board to see the subdivision design with the soils map overlaid with the lot lines, it is 

                       
                   
             
                                  

                                                 

                                     

                                                       
            

                 

           

  

                      



 

Chatham County Planning Board Minutes  

July 16, 2024  Page | 6 

 

something we are used to having to help get our minds around how the project will work and would also be 

more comfortable seeing it in the sketch plan.  

• Mr. Frazier said he would like to talk about administrative major subdivision, this is just a technical thing, it 

is not clear in the UDO text what an administrative subdivision is, he looked hard for it and could not find it. 

The proposal is for 6 to 15 lot subdivisions will not be coming to the Planning Board, but reviewed 

administratively, Mr. Frazier is not sure how he feels about that and would like other members input, but 

one thing that does troubles him is that there is no public notice provided. If someone is building a 15-lot 

subdivision next door, it is important to know about that and to be able to speak about it. Ms. Cousino said 

that is setting up expectations, if you have a 6 to 15 lot subdivision is approved at staff level, the public 

does not have any influence over it. Mr. Frazier said maybe it should not be approved at staff level. Ms. 

Cousino said the commissioners heard this from the County Attorney at their meeting yesterday about how 

subdivision approval is an administerial process, meaning there is no discretion if the subdivision meets all 

the requirements, it should be approved. The County Attorney expressed concern with the BOC approving 

subdivisions because of setting false expectations for the public. The public can feel that their elected 

officials could have some influence whether or not that subdivision gets built. Mr. Frazier said what this 

board does very effectively is listen to the adjoining property owners and their concerns and then see if the 

developer would be willing to make adjustments to address those concerns even if they are not legally 

required to do it. Mr. Frazier said he would not like to see that disappear.  

• Ms. Cousino said this is currently in the regulations for 15 lots or less for conservation subdivisions. Ms. 

Tyson said that is correct, we currently have a small conservation subdivision that was approved 

administratively beside Briar Chapel called Fermiage which did not have a community meeting and this 

proposed regulation is set up the same way.  

• Ms. Colbert asked if anyone had looked retroactively to see how many of the existing subdivisions would 

have been approved administratively if this regulation had been in effect over the past 4 or 5 years just to 

get an idea of those numbers? Ms. Cousino said we have not, but we can look at information up. Ms. 

Tyson said we have had 3 subdivisions with 6-15 lots since 2019. Ms. Colbert asked if we could look back 

a little further. Mr. Glenn said he has counted 7 subdivisions with a lot count of 6-15 since 2016.  

• Ms. Colbert said to Ms. Cousino that in section 12.5.1 there is an A. and B. purpose section before the 

sketch plan and if you go down to section 12.6, there is an A. B. C. and “B” is missing. Is that a typo? Ms. 

Cousino said yes, this is a typo and we will correct that and better distinguish the difference between those 

sections as well.  

 



 

Chatham County Planning Board Minutes  

July 16, 2024  Page | 7 

 

               

 

• Mr. Frazier asked for clarification, the Planning Board will hold the public hearing for subdivisions, but the 

public hearing on zoning changes and is held after the Planning Board. Ms. Cousino said that is correct. 

Mr. Frazier said he wished that could be changed because he would like to know what was said at the 

public hearing. Currently the BOC has the public hearing and then we as a board will know what was said 

before we review the item. Ms. Cousino said the goal with that was to streamline the process and the staff 

had expressed to the consultants how there is some confusion within the community as to how the process 

works currently. Mr. Frazier said it is confusing, but he is also hard-pressed making recommendations 

without hearing from the public. Ms. Plummer said the public will receive notice before the Planning Board 

and can attend and speak on the item if they would like. Ms. Plummer said we are also one of the last 

jurisdictions in the state that has the process like we have it now.  

 

 

    

 

 

 

                       
                         
            

                  
                         
                         

                                     
              
                                               

           
              
                                               

  

                      

  

           
           
         
             
                           

                        
                           

                      

                                
               

                    

                      

                                        

  

                                              



 

Chatham County Planning Board Minutes  

July 16, 2024  Page | 8 

 

       

 

       

 

       

 

• Chair Spoon asked if the cloth banner type signs that businesses sometimes place in front of their 

establishment considered non-conforming temporary signs? Ms. Cousino said they are considered 

temporary signs and are still allowed, but they have limitation on size, height, and number. Ms. Cousino 

said each lot can have one temporary sign with no time limitation and the remining 5 temporary signs have 

a 90 day or less time limit. Chair Spoon asked what is the purpose of the permanent temporary sign? Ms. 

Cousino said that is intended to accommodate real estate signs, because a property can take a long time 

to sell. With content neutrality mandated by the Supreme Court we cannot distinguish signs by their 

content, so we cannot have a category for real estate signs. Chair Spoon said he would personally like to 

get more specific with the description of what is allowed and accommodate real estate signs but limit the 

fabric signs as much as possible because after storms they seem to have blown away and end up in a 

ditch abandoned and disintegrating. There was some board discussion on limiting sign materials and how 

that might impact other signs that would be in use as well, such as flags.  

                           
               

                              

                      
        

             

                         

                       
                

                  

                         

                          

                           

                              

                     

                     
                    

  

                                              

  

           
               

     

              

           

     

                        
                                                       

                                                            
                                                          
                

                                                          
                                           

  

                           

                   
                                                                 

                                    

                           

                                                             
                                                              
                                                              

                                       

  

                           

                                                            

                   
                               
                                      
                               
                                                              

                         
                                    
                                                                
                                                             

                                                              
                                                       

  

                                         

                                                            

                   
                                
                           
                                                                        

                                      
                   
                                                                       

                                              
                                                                   

                                      
                                                                

                  

  

                                         

                                                            



 

Chatham County Planning Board Minutes  

July 16, 2024  Page | 9 

 

• Ms. Colbert asked if there was a way to make the 90-day limitation specific to fabric, meaning the permeate 

temporary sign cannot be made of fabric? Ms. Cousino said we can look into that and ask the sign expert 

in the consultancy firm. Chair Spoon asked if the consultants could look into this so they can protect the 

esthetics of the county.  

 

            

 

         

 

• Chair Spoon asked if non-conforming uses are transferable to new owners of the property. Ms. Cousino 

said yes, the non-conforming use is attached to the property, not the property owner.  

• Mr. Mayer asked how big of a problem is non-conforming structures in Chatham County? Ms. Cousino said 

it is hard gauge and one of the things they try to look at when drafting regulations is how different is this 

from the current regulations and are we potentially creating a lot of non-conforming structures with these 

changes. We keep that in the back of our minds, but we also do not want that to limit what we are trying to 

accomplish as we implement the Comprehensive Plan into the UDO. 

• Chair Spoon asked if we want to have a rehab code for historical buildings, is this the chapter we would 

want those regulations to be located? Ms. Cousino said she is not sure about the rehab code, but we can 

definitely have different standards here in this chapter for historical buildings. We would just need to define 

what a historical building is and then create the standards for them. Chair Spoon said we would like to look 

at that because Chatham County has a lot of history and we would not want them to have to come up to 

modern codes. Ms. Cousino said we would probably go with 50 years and older for structures. Chair Spoon 

said we might want to be more stringent on that because there are some 50-year-old buildings that are 

dilapidated and not historic, it might be better to go for more like 70- to 80-year-old structures would to be 

more significant. Ms. Robertson asked if we would want to include that they be recognized by the state 

historic preservation, because there can be some buildings that are 7 years old that are in bad shape. 

Chair Spoon said maybe they put in an application with the Historical Society and if there is a 

recommendation from them, then goes on the historical list. There was some board discussion and it was 

                              
                        

         

                            
                        
             

  

                           

                              
                  

                                                        
                              
                                            

                                                        
                              

             

                                                        
                       

  

                           

                                                            

         

                                                          

                                                                   
                       

            

                                                            
                                                                   

         

                                                                  
    

                              

  

                           

  

           
           
           

                       

                     



 

Chatham County Planning Board Minutes  

July 16, 2024  Page | 10 

 

agreed that if a structure were already on the state or federal historical registry it would not need to apply 

and would be considered non-conforming structure.  

• Ms. Colbert asked are we talking in terms of designating specific geographical areas, or contiguous 

properties, or are we staying with non-conforming use on a by lot basis. Chair Spoon said he was thinking 

mostly as a by lot basis, Bynum is really our only one special area in Chatham because that community as 

a whole wants to be considered historical. Ms. Cousino said she will make note of it and should it be 

countywide? Chair Spoon said yes, it should be available county wide.    

 

        

 

 

 

 

 

• Chair Spoon said he had an overarching comment for this section and wanted to know if we could 

implement a sliding scale on the size of the project for penalties because $500 per day for a small 

company could put them out of business, where major companies with huge projects do not care about a 

$500 a day penalty. To some degree we need to make the punishments enough to get their attention, but 

not put them out of business. Ms. Plummer said we are governed by the state statute as to how much we 

can charge for penalties. It is currently $50 a day for zoning violations and if they repeat within a 6-year 

period, then it doubles. Then it just keeps going up each time they have a violation and it does add up 

quickly. Chair Spoon said if we do not have discretion then we cannot do anything, but if we do have 

discretion try and make the penalty match the size of the project.   

          
                                               

                                              

                                                            

                                 

                                         

                                       

  

                       

                      
                                                              

                                 
                                                                   
                                                       
                                                         
                                                           
                                                            
                                                               

                                                        
         

  

                       

                    
                              

                                       
                                      

                                     

                

                                    

  

                       



 

Chatham County Planning Board Minutes  

July 16, 2024  Page | 11 

 

• Mr. Andrews asked if we would have the staff to enforce all of this. Ms. Plummer said right now we are a 

complaint driven responses, but maybe in a few years we can hire more code enforcement officers.  

 

     

 

      

 

 

 

 

• Mr. Andrews asked if Right-of-Ways are included in the rules of measurement for lot area. Ms. Cousino 

said no, the Right-of-Way is not included in lot area.    

 

 

  

           
        
                
           
                          

            

                            

                            
                      

                                                 

                       
                                     
                                                         

                                           

                                                  

                                                       

                                                      
                                       

  

                                                 

                            
                                                        

                 

                                                    
                                                
          

                                                          
                              

  

                                                 

                          
        
                
       
                    

                           
              
         
                 

             

                 
  

  

                                                 



 

Chatham County Planning Board Minutes  

July 16, 2024  Page | 12 

 

 

      

 

      

 

      

       

  

           
             
        
                        

                     

              

                          
          

                        
                      
                   
       

  

           
         
            
                                

                    

                             
                         
                          

                              
                              
            

                                  

                           
                       
                                                

                                              

            
                                             

                   

                                                    
                                  

                                                               

                                                            

                                                              

                                  

                           
                                                          

                                                    
                                                    

                                                       
       
                                                   

                                    

                                                          
                                            

  

                                  

                             
                         

                         
                  
                           
                       
              

                       
                              
                      

                        
                

                                      

                            
                             
                             
           

                                  

                             
                   

                   
                

                          
                             
                             
                         

                          
                

  

                          
                

                             
                             

                
                       

                                   

                                     
           

                                  

                             
                                                         

                                      
                                                                  

                                                                         
                                                         

                                                      

                                           

                                                                  

                                                                 
                                                                   
                  

  



 

Chatham County Planning Board Minutes  

July 16, 2024  Page | 13 

 

• Chair Spoon asked at what point would the BOC require this traffic study because you can make an 

argument under one of those bullet points for pretty much every intersection in Chatham County. Ms. 

Cousino said this complies with conditional zoning districts and major subdivisions, so at the sketch plan 

process the BOC could require it or a conditional district rezoning that expanse the area. Chair Spoon said 

would the TIA be executed individually for one parcel with a driveway or could it include a study on an 

intersection or an area with multiple parcels that is owned by the same property owner. Ms. Cousino said 

that could be okay as long as it is the same owner, the challenge would be if it is owned by different 

owners. Chair Spoon said it is good we are filling in a gap that is less than what NCDOT requires, we just 

want to make sure we are not putting that on everything because some projects sould not require a TIA.  

 

        

 

        

 

• Ms. Cousino concluded the presentation and asked if anyone had further questions.  

 

• Chair Spoon asked the staff if the developers that participate in a lot of projects in Chatham County are 

giving their feedback on the draft and if they could navigate through these new processes? Ms. Plummer 

said the drafts are on the Recode Chatham website and there is a place for them to give feedback that Mr. 

Mullis monitors. Mr. Glenn said he and Mr. Mullis will be attending the Home Builders conference soon and 

will be speaking to developers firsthand and will be getting a feel for how they are responding to the draft 

UDO.  Ms. Haddix asked if we have heard back from people. Ms. Plummer said we have heard from a few 

people and it is mostly to help them understand what some of these changes will mean for them 

specifically. Ms. Cousino said we have received comments from the community members, but also from a 

lot of the advisory boards as well.  

• Chair Spoon said it seems like the Board of Adjustment will have an important role in this process 

especially in the first 6 months to a year into adopting the UDO. The process says that it will be staff 

                                  

                     
                                
                          
                           

            
                                  

                     
                             
                             
                       

  

                               
                              

                      
                             

                   
                      

             
                        

                  
                              

           
                               

                        
       
                               
                             

             
                         

                          
                        

             
                                

                         
                            

                                  

                     
                                                           

                                                         
                                                                        

                                                                           
                                                           

                                                                        
                                                                           
                                                                   

                                                                            
                                                                     
                                               

  

          
                      

               

                                                                
         

                                                       

                                        

                                        

  

                       

                                    



 

Chatham County Planning Board Minutes  

July 16, 2024  Page | 14 

 

interpretation of the rules and then if someone disagrees with that, they can appeal it to the Board of 

Adjustment and that is the final decision. The Planning Board and the Board of Commissioners will have no 

advisory role on the initial interpretations of the UDO? Ms. Cousino said that is correct, but the county can 

initiate text amendments to the UDO. Chair Spoon said it would be a good to have quarterly reports as to 

what these interpretations have been and to make sure they are in line to what we see to bring Plan 

Chatham to life.  

• Vice-Chair Roodkowsky said a few months ago there was an issue with a property using the primary and 

accessory dwelling unit (ADU) as Airbnb rentals on two neighboring parcels, so a total of 4 units which look 

the same and the owners are not living on the property. We had discussed adding something to the UDO 

for this concern, but it is not clear where that has been addressed. The local residents were clearly 

distraught about all of this because it is on a private road and all of the visitors for the Airbnb are not 

permanent residents using their private road. We had discussed trying to resolve this kind of problem from 

happening again in the UDO. Vice-Chair Roodkowsky said there is also a storage unit which is questioned 

to be used for commercial purposes as well. Is it possible for us to have some kind of standard to alleviate 

a situation like this.   

• Ms. Cousino said the definition of an ADU is limited to 1500 sf or less of heated living space and these 

definitions are found in Chapter 3 and Chapter 17. It does require a zoning compliance permit and it is only 

allowed in a few districts. Chair Spoon said it sounds like the required zoning compliance permit may be a 

way to confirm the use of the ADU and if they say Airbnb, then we can inform them that is not allowed. Ms. 

Plummer said right now, we do not have a legal way to stop that use or enforcement.  

• Ms. Colbert said in terms of what can we classify this use, could it be commercial and therefore not allowed 

in a residential area. Ms. Cousino said there are provisions in the current code and the UDO for Bed & 

Breakfast homes and Inns which comes from state statute. We have talked about implementing some 

regulations in the UDO specifically for short-term rental. If the board has any input on short-term rental 

restrictions please provide that very soon because we are close to adoption of the UDO.  

• Mr. Andrews said regarding the Airbnb situation on the private road, the County Attorney said as a property 

owner you cannot be alienated from your right to rent your property short-term or long-term. Mr. Andrews 

said neighborhoods can restrict with their restrictive covenants.    

• Mr. Mayer said just to be clear, we cannot regulate short-term rentals. Ms. Plummer said we are looking at 

some baseline criteria for short-term rentals right now. Ms. Cousino said when drafted it would be located 

in Chapter 3. 

• Chair Spoon asked how was the Board of Commissioners meeting last night when the consultants 

presented to them? Ms. Cousino said the meeting went pretty well. We had the work session where we 

provided a UDO Module 2 memorandum which most of the conversation was about trees, and we received 

a direction from the BOC regarding Module 2. Then the regular agenda we presented Module 3 just like 

this board received tonight. The BOC did not have a lot of concern regarding Module 3.  

• Chair Spoon and the Planning Board thanked Ms. Cousino for the presentation. Chair Spoon reminded the 

board members if they have any thoughts to forward them to Mr. Mullis and he will make sure the 

consultants receive them. 

• Ms. Colbert asked if we were at a point where we could schedule a meeting in September to discuss the 

final draft of the UDO. Chair Spoon said he will discuss with Mr. Mullis about a UDO subcommittee meeting 

first and then we will most likely have a special meeting for the Planning Board. Ms. Cousino said the 

consultants would be happy to join a virtual meeting or we can be here in person when the time arrives.  

• Vice-Chair Roodkowsky said she will look at some criteria for short-term rentals because there must be 

something at the state level concerning the difference between a short-term residential rental and a hotel. 



 

Chatham County Planning Board Minutes  

July 16, 2024  Page | 15 

 

Ms. Haddix said she has looked at some cases regarding short-term rental and it is not clear how we can 

restrict what a property owner can do at that level if it is a dwelling. We need to be careful because we do 

not want the county sued and the property owner wins the lawsuit. Ms. Cousino said short-term rentals 

here in Pittsboro has helped her personally as she has stayed in Pittsboro for these meetings. Ms. Haddix 

said that is true, we do not have hotels or affordable housing locally. Ms. Cousino said it is a tough issue 

and most jurisdictions we are working with are struggling with it and there is a wide spectrum of restrictions, 

there is a lot of information out there and we can provide that to this board. Ms. Robertson asked if Ms. 

Cousino would provide that information to the Planning Board. Ms. Cousino said she will provide the 

information on short-term rentals. Ms. Haddix said she would also like to know how the staff feels about it, 

because they are the ones that will have to do all the groundwork and enforce the regulations and would 

like to know what issues staff may see arise if these restrictions are in place.  

• Ms. Colbert said regarding enforcement, we cannot have the posture of how we were dealing with 

enforcement in the past especially in a community that is projected to grow, at some point we are going to 

have to take a stand. A lot of this will fall on the shoulders of the Board of Commissioners more so than the 

Planning staff or this Planning Board, because are they going to allocate what is necessary to ensure a 

consistent enforcement for the county. Because if we do not have enforcement it will not get done and the 

longer we wait to develop an enforcement plan the harder it is to implement as we have population growth 

increase. It can be done, but it will need to be a commitment from the Board of Commissioners.     

 

VII. NEW BUSINESS:  

 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT: 

Motion made by Vice-Chair Roodkowsky and seconded by Ms. Colbert. There being no further business, the meeting 

was adjourned at 8:06 p.m. 

 

Signed: __________________________________________________/______________  

  Jon Spoon, Chair      Date 

 

Attest:  __________________________________________________/______________  

  Dan Garrett, Clerk to the Board    Date  


